
(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOUTHEASTSOUTHEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SUBLETTSUBLETT

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
TL
OC
K

MA
TL
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GGRR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOUTHEASTSOUTHEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SUBLETTSUBLETT

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MITCHELLMITCHELL

0 1 2Miles

¿¿1

¿¿2

PLANNING & ZONINGPLANNING & ZONING
                           August 3, 2016                           August 3, 2016

¿¿3

¿¿4

¿¿5


This p ro duct is fo r in fo rma tio n a l p urp o ses a n d ma y n o t ha ve been  
p rep a red fo r o r be suita ble fo r lega l, en gin eerin g, o r surveyin g 

p urp o ses. It do es n o t
rep resen t a n  o n -the-gro un d survey a n d rep resen ts o n ly the 
a p p ro xima te rela tive lo ca tio n  o f p ro p erty bo un da ries. 

1. Rep la t– Lega cy Heights Additio n
2. Rep la t– Mo o rew o o d Additio n
3. Rep la t– Da vid Strickla n d Additio n
4. PD16-3 Ra ceTra c
5. SUP16-1 St. An drew’s Metho dist Church



   
 
 
 

AGENDA 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

Work Session 

     Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

                 101 West Abram Street  

 
 

August 3, 2016 
4:30 P.M. 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION OF REGULAR SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
III. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE MEETING DATES AND TIMES 
 

(a) Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting on August 17, 2016 
 

(b) Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour –  
August 26, 2016 
 

 
 
IV. ADJOURN 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Regular Session 

   Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

101 West Abram Street  

 
 

August 3, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

 
 
Meeting order is subject to change per the Commission’s Discretion 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

II. PLEDGE 
 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. Minutes of July 13, 2016 P&Z Meeting 

 

 
IV. PLAT CONSENT AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARING FOR PLATS 

 

A. Replat – Legacy Heights Addition – Lots 2R-1, 2R-2, 2R-3, and 
2R-4, Zoned Planned Development (PD) for all Residential 

Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) uses, with a Development Plan; 
generally located west of North Fielder Road and south of 

Northwest Green Oaks Boulevard with the approximate address 
being 2418 North Fielder Road.  

B. Replat – Moorewood Addition – Lots 3R, 5-BR, and 5-CR, Zoned 

Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2); generally located north 
of Collard Road and west of Rush Creek Drive with the 

approximate addresses being 2931, 2951, and 2971 Collard 
Road and 5504 Rush Creek Drive. 

C. Replat – David Strickland Addition – Lot 36BR1, Zoned 
Residential Estate (RE); generally located south of Interstate 20 

Highway West and east of Bowman Springs Road with the 
approximate address being 6804 Interstate 20 Highway West. 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 8-3-16 Page 2 

 

V. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZONING CASES 

A. CONTINUED (from 07-13-16)  Zoning Case PD16-3 

(RaceTrac – 1211 West Harris Road) 
 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 4.166 acres 
from Residential Estate (RE) and Light Industrial (LI) to Planned 

Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) uses 
plus a packaged liquor store, with a Development Plan; generally 

located north of West Harris Road and east of South Cooper 
Street. 

 
B. Specific Use Permit SUP16-1 

(St. Andrew’s Methodist Church – 2045 Southeast Green Oaks 
Boulevard) 

Application for approval of a Specific Use Permit for a day care 
center on approximately 6.053 acres zoned Residential Single-

Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) and Residential Single-Family 5 (RS-5); 
generally located north of Southeast Green Oaks Boulevard and 

east of New York Avenue. 
 

 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. Reports from Boards/Commissions Liaisons 
 

B. Reports from Staff and Announcements 
 

C. Discussion of Future Meeting Dates and Times 
 

 
VII. ADJOURN 



 

Staff Report 
 

Replat (Legacy Heights Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  8-3-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a Replat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On April 6, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of PD16-1 
for a Planned Development (PD) for Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) uses, with a 
Development Plan by a vote of 9-0-0 with the following stipulations: 
 
1. Each dwelling unit must be a minimum of 2,200 square feet in size. 
2. All garages must have decorative wooden doors. 
3. A board-on-board cedar fence with a wooden top is to be installed on the north 

property line adjacent to the commercially zoned property.  This fence is to include 
masonry columns at 30-foot intervals. 

 
On April 26, 2016, City Council approved the first reading of PD16-1 by a vote of 8-1-0. 
 
On May 10, 2016, City Council approved PD16-1 for a Planned Development (PD) for 
Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) uses, with a Development Plan at this location, by a 
vote of 8-1-0. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant, Paradigm Consulting, proposes a replat for 1.003 acres of the Legacy Heights 
Addition.  Through this Replat Lot 2 will be subdivided into four separate lots 2R-1, 2R-2, 
2R-3, and 2R-4 of the Legacy Heights Addition.  This site was zoned commercial prior to the 
approved zoning change in May.  The property is currently undeveloped and is being platted 
to develop four single-family residences.  
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Property Location: Generally located west of North Fielder Road and south 
of Northwest Green Oaks Boulevard with the 
approximate address of 2418 North Fielder Road 

 
 Sector:   North 

 
 Council District:  1 

 
Current Zoning: Planned Development (PD) for all Residential Single-

Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) uses, with a Development Plan    
 

ATTACHED  i. Location Map 
 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 
Planning Manager, Land Development Principal Planner, Land Development 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


LOT 2R-1

LOT 2R-2

LOT 2R-3

LOT 2R-4

RE
PD

PD

RS-7.2

PD

PD16-1
P04-25

P01-74

N 
FIE

LD
ER

 R
D

01606

02411

02407

02415

02416

01600

02409

02414

02418

02405

01500

02417

02403

02430

01801

02419

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 7-5-2016

LEGACY HEIGHTS ADDITION
REPLAT

LVD

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 6030

Feet





 

Staff Report 
 

Replat (Moorewood Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  8-3-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a Replat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant, Sempco Surveying, Inc, proposes a replat for 6.102 acres of the Moorewood 
Addition.  The plat proposes to reconfigure four lots, absorbing Lot 5-A1, creating Lots 3R, 
5-BR, and 5-CR of the Moorewood Addition.  These sites are currently residentially 
developed.  The purpose of this plat is to add additional land area to the remaining lots. 
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Property Location: Generally located north of Collard Road and west of Rush 
Creek Drive with the approximate addresses being 2931, 
2951, and 2971 Collard Road and 5504 Rush Creek 
Drive 

 
 Sector:   Southwest 

 
 Council District:  1 

 
Current Zoning: Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2)    
 

ATTACHED  i. Location Map 
 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 

 
 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks 
Planning Manager, Land Development Principal Planner, Land Development 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Lot 5-BR

Lot 5-CR

Lot 3R

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

MOOREWO OD
DR

COLLARD RD

RU
SH

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

05510 05511

02971

02912

05508
02951

05504

05419

05417

05507

05505

02908

02916

03000

05506

0301203100

05503

02800

02900

02921

05415

05501

02931

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 7-8-2016

MOOREWOOD ADDITION
REPLAT

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 10050

Feet





 

Staff Report 
 

Replat (David Strickland Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  8-3-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a Replat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
The subject property is zoned Residential Estate (RE) and is currently developed with an 
institutional use.  
 
The applicant, Miller Surveying, Inc., proposes a replat for 2.596 acres of the David Strickland 
Survey, creating Lot 36BR1, Block 1 of the David Strickland Addition.  This replat is being 
processed in order to dedicate public right-of-way (ROW) for a turnaround located on 
Treepoint Drive, a 70-foot undivided ROW.    
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Property Location: Generally located south of Interstate 20 Highway West 
and East of Bowman Springs Road with the approximate 
address of 6804 Interstate 20 Highway West 

 
 Sector:   Southwest 

 
 Council District:  2 

 
Current Zoning: Residential Estate (RE)     
 

ATTACHED  i. Location Map 
 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 

 
 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Planning Manager, Land Development Senior Planner, Land Development 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Lot 36BR1
Block 1

SUP10-
14R1

RS-7.2 RMF-22

PDRE

B95-69

W INTERSTATE 20 FWY

W INTERSTATE 20 HWY

SIL
BE

R
RD

06804

05201
07000

07100

06901

07220

06900

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 7-12-2016

DAVID STRICKLAND ADDITION
REPLAT

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 13065

Feet





 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-3 (RaceTrac) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  8-3-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-3. 

 

PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 

On September 16, 2015, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

Zoning Case ZA15-4 by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

On October 13, 2015, the City Council voted to deny Zoning Case ZA15-4 due to some 

prospective uses that would be allowed in Community Commercial zoning at the southern 

gateway to Arlington by a vote of 4-3-0. 

 

On July 13, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission continued Zoning Case PD16-3 until 

August 3, 2016. 

 

ANALYSIS 

Request 

The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 4.166 acres addressed at 

1211 West Harris Road, and generally located north of West Harris Road and east of South 

Cooper Street.  The change in zoning would reduce the amount of industrial zoning in the 

area.  Given the location along a six-lane divided major arterial, it is unlikely that a single 

family residential use would be developed.   

 

Current zoning: Residential Estate (RE) and Light Industrial (LI) 

 

Requested zoning: Planned Development (PD) for limited Community Commercial (CC) 

uses plus a Package Liquor Store 

 

The subject site is undeveloped, unplatted, and has split zoning with RE on the western 

section and LI on the eastern portion.  The applicant is requesting a zoning change for the 

construction of a convenience store with a fuel station on the western section of the lot and 

future commercial development on the eastern section.   

 

Adjacent Land Uses 

The adjacent properties to the north and east are all undeveloped and zoned RE.  The 

properties to the north and east are zoned RE.  The property to the west, across South 

Cooper Street, is also undeveloped and zoned General Commercial (GC).  The properties to 

the south, across West Harris Road, are zoned GC and LI and are developed with a Goodwill 

Industries donation and resource center, and an auto repair business.   

 

Development Plan 

The applicant is proposing to divide the subject site into two lots, a 1.841-acre eastern lot 

and a 2.325-acre western lot.  The western lot is proposed to be developed with a RaceTrac 

convenience store with gasoline sales.  The eastern lot will remain undeveloped.  The 

architectural standards established for the western lot will be applicable to the future 

development(s) on the eastern lot.   

 

The proposed RaceTrac development will consist of an approximate 5,500-square-foot 

building and 16-pump gasoline service area.  The building’s exterior materials will be 

comprised of brick with a stone base, stone columns at the entrance as well as metal and 

wood accent features on the columns and roof.  The color composition of the materials will 

be earthtones primarily featuring browns and sand colors.  Each entry into the building will 



Page 2 of 3 

 

have a metal awning or canopy.  The street-facing elevations will have at least 27% glazing 

in addition to the brick and stone creating an open atmosphere to the structure.  The 

windows facing South Cooper Street will also feature awnings providing a contrast to the 

earthtone elements. 

 

The proposed convenience store will also have an outdoor patio area on the West Harris 

Road side with seating for several patrons.  The patio will be completely covered.  There will 

also be a walkway that surrounds the store which will be at least five feet wide but expand 

to ten feet in some areas.  Bollards will be strategically placed where parking is adjacent to 

the building for the protection of the patrons.  Accent light poles will be incorporated around 

the stores walkway to enhance the aesthetic quality and provide appropriate visibility in the 

evening hours. 

 

The applicant is proposing to have the required street trees along South Cooper Street and 

West Harris Road as well as supply additional trees along the boundary of the eastern lot.  

The applicant also proposes to provide the required plantings along the street to screen the 

parking, the parking lot landscaped islands, the screening of the dumpster enclosure, and 

along the northern boundary in the buffer area adjacent to the residentially-zoned property.  

The dumpster enclosure will also be turned at an angle so that the dumpster doors are not 

directly facing the street.  The applicant will be providing recycling bins within the store and 

in the dumpster enclosure.  In addition to the required plantings, the applicant also 

proposes to plant milkweed plants on the site as a nature preserve area for butterfly 

breeding.   

 

For traffic purposes, the applicant proposes to construct a right turn lane from South Cooper 

Street onto the site so that northbound traffic is not adversely impacted by patrons turning 

into the site.  There are ground signs with digital pricing displays proposed for the site on 

South Cooper Street and West Harris Road.  There will be a four-foot wide sidewalk along 

West Harris Road and a portion of the existing four-foot wide sidewalk along South Cooper 

Street which will continue to remain.  Because a deceleration lane will be built on the South 

Cooper Street side, the existing sidewalk will be removed from and replaced in the right-of-

way just east of the deceleration lane. 

 

The proposed eastern lot of the PD is being re-zoned from LI.  Currently, in LI zoning 

district, uses such as pawn shop, alternative financial institution, and second-hand goods 

uses are allowed; however, through this PD request all of these uses will be excluded, 

except for a Package Liquor Store use, which will be retained.  This ensures that the future 

development of this key node entering Arlington from the south will be developed with retail 

uses that will serve the nearby residential uses appropriately.  The applicant has stated that 

the existing RaceTrac store on South Cooper will be demolished once this store has been 

constructed and redeveloped with a restaurant.   

 

Sector Plan Conformity 

The 2015 Comprehensive Plan, 99 Square Miles, contains goals for residential 

neighborhoods to have commercial development which provides convenient neighborhood 

services to those who live there.  A PD for limited CC uses is a lower intensity zoning that 

allows these types of neighborhood convenience uses without the potential for more intense 

future uses.  

 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with the strategies and goals in the 

Comprehensive Plan and is in general conformance with it and other relevant plans.   

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Attached: i. Case Information 

 ii Itemized Allowable Uses 

 iii. Location Map 

 iv. Photos 

 v.  Development Plan (4 pages) 

Under separate cover: None 

Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 

 

CITY COUNCIL DATE August 23, 2016 
 

STAFF CONTACTS 

Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Nathaniel Barnett, AICP 

Planning Manager, Land Development Senior Planner 

Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 

817-459-6138 817-459-6670 

Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Nathaniel.Barnett@arlingtontx.gov  

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Nathaniel.Barnett@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
  

Zoning Case: PD16-3  i-1 

Prepared:   6-29-16     NATHANIEL BARNETT 

Applicant: Winstead, P.C. represented by Tommy Mann and Laura 

Hoffmann 

 

Property Owner:  Carroll Family Investments, Ltd.  

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  2 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently unplatted and commonly known as 

Tract 5E of the Temple O Harris Survey, A-645. 

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

ZA15-4 1211 W 

Harris Rd. 

Residential Estate 

(RE) and Light 

Industrial (LI) to 

Community 

Commercial (CC) 

Denied 

PD13-13 7108 S 

Cooper 

PD for LI uses Approved 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two points of access.  One point 

of access from South Cooper Street and one point from West 

Harris Road. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

S Cooper Street 115-foot, 6-lane 

divided  

major arterial 

115-foot, 6-lane 

divided  

major arterial 

W Harris Road 60 – 95-foot, 2-

lane, rural road 

with auxiliary lanes 

70 – 80-foot, 4-

lane undivided, 

major collector 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed PD zoning will generate an increase of 2,489 

vehicles per day, an increase of 160 vehicles in the AM Peak 

Hour and an increase of 205 vehicles in the PM Peak Hour. 

Improvements to handle the increased traffic to the adjacent 

street system will be reviewed with development.  

   

Water & Sewer:  Water is available from a 12-inch water line in South Cooper 

Street and a 12-inch water line in West Harris Road.  Sanitary 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD16-3  i-2 

Prepared:   6-29-16     NATHANIEL BARNETT 

Sewer is available from an 8-inch sanitary sewer line in South 

Cooper Street. 

 

Drainage: The site is located within the Rush Creek drainage basin.  No 

portion of the site is located in a floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as the site complies with relevant city 

ordinances. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 15, located at 906 Eden Road, provides 

protection to this site.  The estimated fire response time is          

less than five minutes, which is in keeping with recommended 

standards. 

 

School District: Mansfield Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Mansfield 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Chamber of Commerce 

East Arlington Review 

Fannin Farm Home Owners Association  

Fannin Farms West Association, Incorporated   

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owners Association 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Property Owners: 8 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



Itemized Allowable Uses 
 

 

Zoning Case:  PD16-3   ii-1 

Prepared:   6-29-16     NATHANIEL BARNETT 

Allowable Uses: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) FOR LIMITED COMMUNITY 

COMMERCIAL (CC) USES PLUS A PACKAGE LIQUOR STORE 

 

Permitted – Nursing home, Art gallery or museum, Government 

administration and civic buildings, Domestic violence shelter, 

Mortuary/crematory/funeral chapel, Philanthropic institution (other 

than listed), Religious assembly, Business school, Public or private 

school, University/college/seminary, Hospital, Medical or dental office 

or clinic, Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or playground, 

Crop production, Gasoline sales, Catering service, Restaurant, 

Restaurant/take-out and delivery only, Office/business or professional, 

Telemarketing call center, Day care center, Private 

club/lodge/fraternal, General personal services (other than listed), 

Massage therapy clinic, Recreation/ indoor (other than listed), 

Wedding chapel, Major tourist attraction, General retail store (other 

than listed), Firearm sales, Swimming pool/spa and accessory sales 

and service, Medical or scientific research laboratory, Electric utility 

substation, Radio or TV station or studio, Package liquor store, Self-

storage facility 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) – Halfway House, Hospital/psychiatric, 

Hotel/limited service, Residence hotel, Bail bond service, Billiard 

parlor, Bowling alley, Bingo parlor, Recreation general outdoor (other 

than listed), Transit passenger terminal 

 

Conditions (C) – Kennel/commercial, Veterinary clinic, Motor vehicle 

rental, Bank or Financial institution, Restaurant with drive-through, 

Sidewalk café, Hotel/full service, Skating rink, Teen club, Theatre 

indoor, Building and landscaping materials and lumber sales, 

Nursery/garden shop or plant sales, Food processing, Custom and craft 

work, Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted antennae and 

towers, Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers 

≤100 ft., Wholesale supply business 

 

Excluded Uses: Alternative Financial Institution, Banquet hall, Country club, Gas well,      

Golf course, Indoor gun range, Marina, Nightclub, Pawn shop, Second-

hand goods store, Specialty paraphernalia sales, Tattoo parlor or 

piercing studio, Telecommunication facility towers >75 feet and stealth 

towers > 100 feet, Transit passenger terminal, Utility installation other 

listed, Utility lines, towers or metering station, Wrecker service 

  

 



PD

PD

IM

IM

RE

GC

RE

GC LI

CC

LI

LI

Z06-30/B06-30

P98-42

W HARRIS RD

S C
OO

PE
R 

ST

07292

07290

07304
01210

07302

07300

07340

07120

01201

07207

07121 07141

07200

07201

01211

07361

07351

07360

07406
07350

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-3

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 7-6-2016

LI AND RE TO PD FOR LIMITED CC 
PLUS A PACKAGE LIQUOR STORE 
WITH A DEVELOPMENT PLAN
4.166 ACRES

NB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 10050

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-3 

RE/LI to PD for limited CC plus Package Liquor Store 
North of West Harris Road and east of South Cooper Street  

 

 

View of subject site.  View looking north. View of adjacent commercial use located south of 

the subject site. 

  

View of adjacent property north of the subject 

site. 

View of from the subject site looking west 

 











 

Staff Report 
 

Specific Use Permit SUP16-1 (St. Andrew’s Methodist Child Care 
Facility) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date: 8-3-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Specific Use Permit SUP16-1. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
On February 19, 1992, Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Substitute Landscape 
Plan, SLP92-03 by a vote of 5-0-0, for the reduction of the width of the landscape buffer on 
the north eastern property line. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Request 
The applicant requests approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Day Care Center  on 
6.053 acres out of an approximately 15.046 acre tract zoned Residential Single-Family 7.2 
(RS-7.2) and Residential Single-Family 5 (RS-5); addressed at 2045 Southeast Green Oaks 
Boulevard, and generally located north of Southeast Green Oaks Boulevard and east of New 
York Avenue. 
 
Site History 
The site began development in 1992 with the original church building.  Also in 1992, the 
church sought to reduce the landscape buffer on the northeast portion of the site through a 
Substitute Landscape Plan.  This portion was adjacent to a flood plain, and was already a 
heavily wooded area.  Since that time, the church has increased the lot size through 
replatting, added additional parking lot space, an educational/office addition, a vestibule, a 
playground, an open air pavilion, and a sports field.  With these additions, the Substitute 
Landscape Plan was also revised Administratively a total of three times.      
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The existing site encompasses three separate zoning categories.  The proposed SUP is 
located in portions zoned RS-7.2 and RS-5.  The remaining portion zoned Community 
Commercial (CC) would not require an SUP for this use, and contains the existing sports 
field.  The portion of the site that does pertain to the SUP is currently developed with the 
existing Saint Andrew’s Methodist Church buildings and parking lots. Currently there are 
three existing shipping containers at the rear of the property.  The proposed SUP would 
allow for the accessory use of a daycare center within the existing educational/office 
building, which requires an SUP in both the RS-7.2 and RS-5 zoning categories according to 
the Unified Development Code.  
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The properties to the north and east are zoned Residential Single-Family 5 (RS-5) and are 
developed as single family homes. A large portion of this development does however remain 
undeveloped, as it is located within the flood plain.  The property to the south is zoned 
Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) and is currently a part of Fish Creek Linear Park.  The 
properties to the west of the subject site are zoned Community Commercial (CC) and are 
developed with commercial establishments.  These developments are home to a number of 
commercial uses including general retail stores, general personal services uses, and 
restaurants.   
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Landscape  
The most current Substitute Landscape Plan (SLP92-03-R3) was approved administratively 
on November 7, 2003.  With the proposed Specific Use Permit, the applicant, along with the 
church, will bring the existing landscaping back into compliance with this plan.  The 
following table indicates the current deficiencies with SLP92-03-R3 and the applicant’s 
proposal: 
  

 
The applicant and church are proposing to replace the missing trees and shrubs with the 
species indicated on the existing plan.  The church is proposing that the replacement 
landscaping would be installed no later than May 2017.  
 
Specific Use Permit 
The proposed day care center would begin operation with a small number of students and 
projects to grow to no more than an 80 student maximum.  If the number of children 
exceeds this maximum, a new Specific Use Permit would need to be acquired.  There is a 
playground onsite located within the boundaries of the Specific Use Permit. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The 2015 Comprehensive Plan, 99 Square Miles, indicates that the subject site is in the 
Established Residential future development area, which contains a variety of housing types 
as well as retail services. People living in these areas would enjoy the benefits of 
neighborhood parks, schools and community recreation centers. Appropriate land uses for 
these areas include residential uses, neighborhood convenience uses, small-scale office 
uses, parks, recreation centers, and trails. 
 
The proposed daycare center will provide a neighborhood and community service that is 
compatible with the Established Residential development area goals. The requested SUP is 
in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 

 Required per  
SLP92-03 and 

Revisions 
Existing Proposed  

Landscape Setback 

Trees in Setback 9, 3” caliper Cedar 
Elms and Live Oaks 

6 trees remaining Replace missing 3,  
3” caliper trees 

Landscape Buffer 

Trees in Buffer 9, 3” caliper Cedar 
Elms 

3 trees remaining Replace missing 6, 
3” caliper trees 

Parking Lot Screening 

Shrubs Approximately 53  
Dwarf Burford Holly 

Approximately 13 
shrubs remaining  

Replace missing 
shrubs to complete 

parking lot 
screening 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv.  Photos 
 v. SUP Site Plan (1 page)  
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE August 23, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Bryan Isham 
Development Planning Manager Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6654 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Bryan.Isham@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Specific Use Permit: SUP16-1  i-1 

Prepared:   7-6-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

Applicant: Cole Design Group represented by Ronald Salamie 

 

Property Owner:  Saint Andrews Methodist Church represented by Edd Slaughter 

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  3 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted as Lot 16A of the J. Balch 

Addition. 

 

 No previous zoning cases have occurred in the general vicinity 

within the past five years 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two points of access.  Both 

points of access are from Southeast Green Oaks Boulevard. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

Southeast Green 

Oaks Boulevard 

100-foot, 4 lane 

divided 

major arterial 

120-foot, 6 lane 

divided 

major arterial 

 New York Avenue 66-foot, 4 lane 

divided 

minor arterial 

90-foot, 4 lane 

divided 

minor arterial 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed change from church to day care with 20-25 

children will not significantly impact the adjacent roadway 

systems. 

  

Water & Sewer:  Water and sewer are available along Southeast Green Oaks 

Boulevard. 

 

Drainage: The site is located within the South Fish Creek drainage basin 

and is approximately 5% within the FEMA floodplain. 

No significant drainage impacts are expected to result from 

development of this site as long as all relevant city ordinances 

are complied with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 12, located at 5050 South Collins Street, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District. 

 



Case Information  
   

 

Specific Use Permit: SUP16-1  i-2 

Prepared:   7-6-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

 The proposed specific use permit request is located in the 

Arlington Independent School District and has no impact on the 

schools serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

WeCan (West Citizen Action Network) 

Briarhill Neighborhood Assn 

Fish Creek Neighborhood Assn. Inc. 

Fish Creek Neighborhood Assn. Inc. 

Fitzgerald Concerned Citizens 

Manhassett Community Watch Group 

Webb Britton Estates 

 

  Property Owners: 44 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Specific Use Permit:  SUP16-1  ii-1 

Prepared:   7-6-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

 

Allowable Uses: Residential Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) 

 

Permitted - Dwelling, single-family detached on minimum 7,200 

Square Feet, Non-Residential on minimum 15,000 square foot lots, 

Assisted living facility (≤6 residents), Community home for disabled 

persons, Foster family home, Foster group homes, Government 

administration and civic buildings, Religious assembly, Public or private 

school, Community garden, Public park or playground, Golf course, 

Utility lines, towers or metering station, garage (private), and 

accessory swimming pool (private). 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) - Assisted living facility (≥7 residents), 

Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Bed and breakfast inn, Day 

care center, Country club, Marina, Airport or landing field, Gas well, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers ≤100 ft., 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth towers >100 ft., 

Community center (private), and Secondary living unit. 

 

Conditions (C) – Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted 

antennae and towers, Accessory building, Alternative energy system, 

Carport, and Home-based business.  

 

 

Residential Single-Family 5 (RS-5) 

 

Permitted - Dwelling, single-family detached on minimum 5,000 

Square Feet, Non-Residential on minimum 15,000 square foot lots, 

Assisted living facility (≤6 residents), Community home for disabled 

persons, Foster family home, Foster group homes, Government 

administration and civic buildings helter, Religious assembly, Public or 

private school, Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or 

playground, Golf course, Utility lines, towers or metering station, 

garage-private, and accessory swimming pool-private. 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) - Assisted living facility (≥7 residents), 

Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Bed and breakfast inn, 

Country club, Marina, Airport or landing field, Gas well, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers ≤100 ft., 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth towers >100 ft. 

 

Conditions (C) – Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted 

antennae and towers, Nursery garden shop or plant sales, 

Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted antennae and towers.  

 

 

Community Commercial (CC) 

 

Permitted – Nursing home, Art gallery or museum, Government 

administration and civic buildings, Domestic violence shelter, 



 Itemized Allowable Uses 
    

Specific Use Permit:  SUP16-1  ii-1 

Prepared:   7-6-16     BRYAN ISHAM 

Mortuary/crematory/funeral chapel, Philanthropic institution (other 

than listed), Religious assembly, Business school, Public or private 

school, University/college/seminary, Hospital, Medical or dental office 

or clinic, Cemetery, Community garden, Public park or playground, 

Crop production, Gasoline sales, Catering service, Restaurant, 

Restaurant/take-out and delivery only, Office/business or professional, 

Telemarketing call center, Day care center, Private 

club/lodge/fraternal, General personal services (other than listed), 

Massage therapy clinic, Recreation/ indoor (other than listed), 

Wedding chapel, Country club, Golf course, Major tourist attraction, 

General retail store (other than listed), Firearm sales, Pawn shop, 

Second-hand goods store, Swimming pool/spa and accessory sales 

and service, Medical or scientific research laboratory, Electric utility 

substation, Radio or TV station or studio, Utility lines, towers or 

metering station.  

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) – Halfway House, Hospital/psychiatric, 

Alternative Financial Institution, Hotel/limited service, Residence hotel, 

Bail bond service, Banquet hall, Billiard parlor, Tattoo parlor, Bowling 

alley, Bingo hall, Gun range, Night club, Recreation general outdoor 

(other than listed), Marina, Specialty paraphernalia sales, Wrecker 

service, Gas well, Transit passenger terminal, Utility installation other 

than listed, Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth 

towers >100 ft., Self-storage facility.  

 

Conditions – Kennel/commercial, Veterinary clinic, Motor vehicle 

rental, Financial services, Restaurant with drive-through, Sidewalk 

café, Hotel/full service, Skating rink, Teen club, Theatre indoor, 

Building and landscaping materials and lumber sales, Nursery/garden 

shop or plant sales, Food processing, Custom and craft work, 

Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted antennae and towers, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers ≤100 ft., 

Wholesale Supply Business 



RS-7.2

RS-7.2RS-7.2

RS-5RS-7.2

CC

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-5

RS-5
PD

CC

RS - 5

CC
PDZ98-15/P98-15

P94-07

NE
W 

YO
RK

 AV
E

NORMANDY DR
WAMSETTA

DRSH
ER

RY
ST

SE GREEN OAKS BLV

FA
RR

AG
UT

DR

HIGHBANK DR
FO

UR
 W

IN
DS

 D
R LENNOX LN

CLIFFSIDE DR

01817

01819

01834

01816

05300

01818

05531

02213

02021

05401

01835

05521

02306

05501

01810

05535

02302

05515

05527

05523

05517

05529
05525

02204

02304

05507

05503

05533
02001

02100

02200

05509

02220

01902

02004

02028 02218
02216

01912 01914

05301

01904 01908

05512

01900

01915

02104

05309

01910

02217

05511

02102

02106

02020
05303

02215
02211

02222

02030

02026

02009

05101

01837

01906

05371

02002

05510

02045

02206

02210

05537

05210

05318
05316
05314

05508
05405 05506

02032

05324

05302

05322
05320

01905
01919

05328

02007

02015
02019

05307

01901

01903

02105

02022

05402

02034

02023

05317

02202

05505

0210305504

05406
05404

0530602018

05150

05304

01916

02000

05400 02017

05500

05305

02006
01907

0533005311

05326

02011

02051

05601

05712

02301
02305

05718

02307

02121

02303

05600

05701

05714

02201

02205
02207

02208

02203

02209
05315

05308

01918

05407

05403
02101

0550202024

05310

02025

05716

/

LOCATION MAP
SUP16-1

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 7-6-2016

SUP FOR DAY CARE CENTER 
FOR 6.053 ACRES

BI

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 270135

Feet



  iv-1 
 

SUP16-1 

North of Southeast Green Oaks Boulevard and east of New York Avenue  

 
 

View of north towards Single Family 

Residences. 

View of subject site.  View east. 

  

View of south towards Fish Creek Linear Park. View of west towards adjacent commercial 

development. 

  

 




	Case Location Map
	Work Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda Items
	Legacy Heights Addition SR with attach for 8-3-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	Moorewood Addition SR with attach for 8-3-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	David Strickland Addition SR with attach for 8-3-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	PD16-3 Staff Report with attach for 8-3-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	SUP16-1 Staff Report with attach for 8-3-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Site Plan





